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REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FROM 
FINANCIAL ORGANIZATIONS FOR THE PROVISION OF TRUSTEE/CUSTODIAN 

SERVICES FOR THE DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE 
STATE OF NEW YORK AND OTHER PARTICIPATING PUBLIC JURISDICTIONS (“PLAN”) 
 

Addendum A: Questions and Answers 
 

April 14, 2021 
 
 
 
1. For Banking/Treasury Management services, please provide estimated volumes for the 

following: 
• Number of accounts required 
• Check disbursement volumes 
• ACH debit block volumes 
• ACH reissuance volumes 
• ACH credit and debit items received volumes 
• Wire transfer services – volumes of wires in/out 
• Remote deposit capture – volumes of checks deposited (please also clarify whether a 

remote Lockbox deposit or standard remote deposit is required) 
 

Please refer to Exhibit H – Fee Exhibit provided with the RFP Questionnaire. Volumes for the 
requested transaction types are provided in the NYSDCP Benefit Payments and NYSDCP Banking 
Services worksheets.  
 
Remote Lockbox deposit is required. 

 
2. Please provide more details on the type of support NYSDCP would need for ‘GASB Regulatory 

Reporting Support’ listed on Page 7 under the ‘Scope of Services to be Provided.’ 
 

NYSDCP would like to understand your firm’s capabilities in support of reporting requirements such 
as (but not limited to) GASB 72 – Fair Value Measurement, GASB 40 – Deposit and Investment Risk 
Disclosures, etc. for annual financial reporting.   

 
3. Please confirm which service provider is responsible for initiating the trades with the 

Collective Investment Trust/Mutual Fund managers for the daily participant investment 
activity, the Recordkeeper or the Custodian? 

 
The Recordkeeper is responsible for placing the trades with Collective Investment Trust/Mutual Fund 
managers within their respective deadlines. The Recordkeeper will also notify separately managed 
account managers of the daily cash flow/trade amount.   

 
4. Please confirm that in the Scope of Services the tax reporting referenced in this requirement 

“Process distributions, perform tax reporting and make other payments from the Plan as 
directed by the Board” is limited to tax reporting for the Benefit Payment function. 

 
Confirmed. 
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5. Please confirm in the Scope of Services if the requirement to “File accountings with the Board 
at the end of each year” is limited to the annual accounting statements. 

 
Confirmed. 

 
6. The terms trustee and custodian are used interchangeably throughout the RFP. Assuming the 

requirement is for formal Trustee services, please direct us to the state and local statutes that 
will be applicable for this appointment.  

 
The Plan is governed by Section 457 of the IRC, Section 5 of the New York State Finance Law, Parts 
9000 – 9006 of the New York State Code of Rules and Regulations (the “Rules and Regulations”), 
and all other applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 

 
7. Can a bank that is neither incorporated in New York nor a National Association bank serve as 

trustee/custodian of the assets covered by this RFP? 
 

Yes. 
 
8. In the scope of services there is a requirement the trustee custodian “Vote any proxies as 

directed by the Plan”.  Are the individual investment managers hired by the plan empowered 
to vote proxies or does this responsibility remain with plan administration? 

 
The investment managers have discretion with respect to proxy voting. 

 
9. Please identify the accounts and types for which the Plan would like to receive Performance, 

Risk and/or Compliance services. 
 

Performance, Risk, and Compliance Monitoring services are not within the scope of service to be 
provided. 

 
10.  Please provide Appendix B: Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire and Appendix C: 

Application for a Competitively Bid Contract (ADM 28) as we do not see either document 
included in the RFP materials received. 

 
Enclosed are Appendix B: Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire, and Appendix C: Application for a 
Competitively Bid Contract (Form ADM-28). 

 
11.  Please clarify what the 3 unitizations represent on the Fee Exhibit. 
 

The three unitizations represent the International Equity Fund (ACTIVE), International Equity Fund 
(INDEX), and the Stable Income Fund. 

 
12.  Would NYSDCP be open to suggested modifications to the Terms and Conditions? 
  

Yes. The terms of the agreement will be subject to negotiation. 
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13.  Page 2 of the RFP refers to the following as being attached but are not included in the 
documentation we received: 

 
• Contract Questionnaire – Appendix A 
• Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire – Appendix B 
• Application for a Competitively Bid Contract (Form ADM-28) 

 
Are these required as part of the RFP response or only if we are the selected contractor?  If 
these attachments are required for the bid, please forward. 

 
Appendix A: Contract Questionnaire begins on Page 19 of the RFP document. Enclosed are 
Appendix B: Vendor Responsibility Questionnaire, and Appendix C: Application for a Competitively 
Bid Contract (Form ADM-28). 
 
These forms must be completed as part of the RFP response in order to receive consideration. 
 

14.  For the mutual fund/CITs in the plan, does the plan recordkeeper or trustee execute the 
trades?  Who is the settlement party for those trades? 

 
The recordkeeper is responsible for placing the trades with Collective Investment Trust/Mutual Fund 
managers within their respective deadlines. The recordkeeper will also notify separately managed 
account managers of the daily cash flow/trade amount. The trustee/custodian is responsible for 
moving daily cash flows based on the participant activity and settlement all associated trades with the 
investment managers. The trustee/custodian will initiate all necessary wires and receive any incoming 
wires as directed by the participant activity.   

 
15.  How are the funds registered?  Are they in the name of the plan or the trustee’s name on 

behalf of the plan? 
 

The funds are registered in the trustee/custodian’s nominee name on behalf of the Plan. 
 
16.  Please provide the number of positions for the separately managed US and Global assets by 

country. 
 

This level of detail is not available at this time. 
 
17.  Please provide an average cash balance in the custodian’s short term investment fund. 
 

The cash balance was $23,240,094 as of December 31, 2020. The cash balance can vary but please 
use this figure as an indicative amount. 

 
18.  Please provide the tickers on the funds for which NYSDCP receives rebates of 12b-1 fees and 

the percentage of the rebates. 
 

Funds with 12b-1 rebates include: 
 
Fidelity OTC - FOCKX - 0.2% 
Pax Global Environmental Markets Fund - PGINX - 0.1% 
Delaware Small Cap Value Fund - DEVIX - 0.25% 
 



 4 

19.  Please provide additional detail on the requirement on p.6 of the RFP for notification to the 
Board prior to any wire rejection. 

 
As an example, if erroneous wire instructions are provided causing a wire to be rejected, it is 
expected that the trustee/custodian will notify Board staff of the rejected transaction so that it can be 
rectified. 

 
20.  Who is currently taking participant calls? 
 

Nationwide Retirement Solutions (NRS) currently takes participant calls. 
 
21.  Are payments processed daily?  Are there other scheduled payment cycles such as weekly? 
 

Yes. Payments are processed daily. Participants may elect to receive benefits as a lump-sum, 
periodic payments, installments, or partial lump-sum payments. 

 
22.  Are participants currently using an on-line tool? 

 
Yes. Participants can access their accounts through the NYSDCP website. 
 

23.  Are the international ACH payments made in US dollars? 
 
International ACH payments are not currently issued but would likely be made in US dollars. 
NYSDCP would like to understand your firm’s capabilities regarding international ACH services. 
 

24.  Please provide FX volumes ($) for 12 months, separately for Custody FX and Directly 
Negotiated. Please identify whether the volumes are in developed or emerging markets, or 
provide volume by currency. 
 
FX trade volumes (Custody FX and 3rd Party FX) are provided in Exhibit H – Fee Exhibit. Currency 
volume and country breakdown are not available at this time. 
 

25.  Please provide turnover for global portfolios. 
 
Annual transaction volumes by country are provided in Exhibit H – Fee Exhibit. 
 

26.  Is it a requirement that the lockbox must be located in the state of New York? 
 
No. 
 

27.  Will all scanning occur within the U.S.? 
 
NYSDCP does not currently utilize Remote Capture Deposit services. NYSDCP would like to 
understand your firm’s capabilities regarding these services to evaluate if they would be beneficial to 
the current process.   
 

28.  How many locations will be needed? 
 
Not applicable. 
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29.  How many scanners will be needed in each location? 
 
Not applicable. 
 

30.  What is the monthly check volume that is directed to a lockbox? 
 
Annual transaction volumes are provided in Exhibit H – Fee Exhibit, NYSDCP Banking Services 
worksheet. 
 

31.  What is the monthly check volume that is deposited directly into the bank account? 
 
All deposits are currently processed by the lockbox provider. Annual transaction volumes for deposit 
transactions are provided in Exhibit H – Fee Exhibit, NYSDCP Banking Services worksheet. 
 

32.  If deposited directly to a bank account- We provide optional image retention lengths up to 2 
years, for a monthly rate based upon the number of months needed. 
 
Please specify the standard image retention length provided versus the optional retention length and 
associated fees with each in your RFP response. 
 

33.  Would you be willing to use our Remote Deposit Business Mobile Offering? 
 
NYSDCP would like to understand your firm’s capabilities regarding these services to evaluate if they 
would be beneficial to the current process. 
 

34.  Is NYSDCP willing to work from the service provider’s Agreement and/or negotiate to 
incorporate terms required by the service provider? 
 
Yes. We would consider working from the service provider’s agreement subject to negotiation. 
 

35.  Please provide a holdings file inclusive of the fund number (or dummy fund number), security 
name, description, currency and market value?  If a holdings file can’t be provided, can New 
York State Deferred Compensation Plan (NYSDCP) please provide the number, type and 
currency of holdings by account in each trust? 
 
A complete list of holdings will not be provided at this time. Please refer to Exhibit H – Fee Exhibit 
where international equity separate account holding values are provided by country which can be 
used to identify currency. Depository locations are also listed to further distinguish where some 
international assets are held. Note that Exhibit H also identifies the number of Target Date Funds, 
accounts by type (separate vs. line item), and the number of line item holdings in.   
 

36.  Please provide a schematic of NYSDCP’s plan structure that illustrates the fund of fund 
structure and roll-ups. 
 
For illustrative purposes, please refer to Exhibit D which represents the Investment Option view as of 
12/31/2020. Note that there are three unitized funds comprised of underlying funds as described in 
the response to Question 11. 
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37.  The RFP asks a number of questions about derivative processing and reporting.  Please 
provide a list of its derivative holdings by type. 
 
Current derivative processing is primarily limited to futures. NYSDCP would like to understand your 
firm’s capabilities regarding processing and reporting for the range of derivative types should such 
services be required in the future. 
 

38.  Is there any flexibility in obtaining the mutual and commingled fund pricing prior to 6:00 PM, 
rather than the stated 6:30 PM timeframe?  If statements are not received until 6:30 PM, would 
an 8:30 PM NAV dissemination to the recordkeeper be acceptable? 
 
The exact timing may have some flexibility but must be discussed in more detail and agreed to by 
NYSDC and the recordkeeper in consideration of dependent processes.  
 

39.  Please elaborate on the tax reporting requirements, as mentioned in the “Scope of Services” 
section of the RFP document (pg. 6). 
 
Within the scope of services, tax reporting relates to benefit payment services disbursements. 
 

40.  The “Scope of Services” section of the RFP document (pg. 6) lists “FX transactions without 
additional fees.”  Please confirm that “fees” do not refer to a fixed basis points spread applied 
to each custody FX transaction. 
 
Confirmed. 
 

41.  Please share actual or indicative annual FX volumes by market, broken down between 
custodian flow and third party flow.  Please include notional amounts in US dollar ($) terms. 
 
FX trade volumes (Custody FX and 3rd Party FX) are provided in Exhibit H – Fee Exhibit. Currency 
volume, notional amounts, and country breakdown are not available at this time. 
 

42.  Are there any special FX pricing arrangements in place with the incumbent custodian?  If so, 
please describe. 
 
No. 
 

43.  Please help us understand NYSDCP’s general short-term cash management strategy, what 
sort of instruments does NYSDCP generally invest in (ex: T-bills, commercial paper, MMFs, 
bank deposits, etc.)? 
 
NYSDCP generally manages short-term cash held to a minimum which is invested in the custodian’s 
Short-term Investment Fund (STIF) sweep vehicle. 
 

44.  Is there a specific benchmark NYSDCP follows for its short-term cash management? 
 
No. 
 

45.  With respect to NYSDCP’s short-term cash strategy, is the primary driver yield or capital 
preservation to assist with operational requirements? 
 
The primary driver is capital preservation to assist with operation requirements. 
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46.  Are there any unique features of NYSDCP’s cash management solutions we should be aware 

of? 
 
No. All sweep interest earned on accounts is moved to the Plan expense account monthly. 
 

47.  Please describe NYSDCP’s cash projection reporting requirements for sweep and non-sweep 
accounts. 
 
Cash projection reporting is not required by NYSDCP staff for sweep or non-sweep accounts. The 
trustee/custodian is expected to provide NYSDCP staff with a report of the total sweep income moved 
to the Plan expense account on a monthly basis. 
 

48.  With respect to NYSDCP’s current custodian, does NYSDCP utilize their automated sweep 
platform?  If yes, is it active or passive? 
 
Yes. The automated sweep platform of the current custodian is used. Cash is swept to the 
custodian’s STIF product with no intervention or direction from NYSDCP staff.  
 

49.  Does NYSDCP participate in a deposit program, if available? 
 
No. 
 

50.  Please describe any bespoke processing or reporting necessary to support MMF/STIF 
programs. 
 
There is currently no bespoke processing or reporting to support MMF/STIF programs. 
 

51.  For cash movements, what is NYSDCP’s method of instruction (SWIFT, fax, other)? 
 
The current method of instruction for cash movements is written directive transmitted via secure 
email. NYSDCP would like to understand your firm’s capabilities regarding cash movement 
instructions (i.e. secure online instruction processing tools) to evaluate if they would be beneficial to 
the current process.  
 

52.  In addition to the vehicle options listed in Section X of the RFP document (pg. 35), would 
NYSDCP be open to using a short term investment vehicle dedicated specifically to NYSDCP? 
 
The primary objective is capital preservation. NYSDCP is interested in learning about your firm’s 
available offerings for evaluation. 
 

53.  Please provide benefit payments volumes for each year from 2015-2019 inclusive of all the 
activity types provided in the Benefit Payments tab of Exhibit H.  We are looking to understand 
the year to year volume changes and whether 2020 is representative of normalized volumes. 
 
Please assume that the benefit payment volumes provided in Exhibit H represent normal volumes. 
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54.  Given that benefit payment volumes can fluctuate in material amounts from year to year, is 
NYSDCP agreeable to a variable fee structure for this service instead of a flat annual fee? 
 
Yes. A unit cost fee structure based on actual transaction volumes is acceptable. Fee invoices must 
provide full itemization and detail for services rendered. 
 

55.  Please provide the number of retirees currently drawing benefits from the plans for each year, 
from 2015-2019. 
 
The majority of participants drawing benefits from the Plan are retirees. Please refer to Exhibit H – 
Fee Exhibit, NYSDCP Benefit Payments Services worksheet for annual payment volumes for 2020. 
 

56.  Is the incumbent custodian NYSDCP’s current benefit payment agent?  If not, who is? 
 
Yes. 
 

57.  Does NYSDCP direct the benefit paying agent or is a third party administrator (TPA) used?  If 
there is a TPA, who is it? 
 
The benefit paying agent receives direction from the recordkeeper, Nationwide Retirement Solutions 
(NRS) via transmission file. 
 

58.  Please elaborate on this question:  “How do you partner with customers to provide plan 
participants in pay status with communications?” (pg. 42) 
 
In support of communications or announcements from NYSDCP to participants, can your firm 
accommodate mail inserts, special messaging on checks or advices, or other delivery methods? Are 
there any other ways that you work with clients to support participant communication campaigns? 
 

59.  Please provide an analysis statement for the details related to volumes of all NYSDCP’s 
Treasury and Banking Services.  
 
Detailed analysis statements for Treasury and Banking Services are not available. Please refer to 
Exhibit H for NYSDCP Banking Services indicative annual volumes.  
 

60.  Please provide examples of the coupons or forms that will be submitted to the lockbox for 
processing. 
 
Examples of lockbox remittance forms are not available. NYSDCP will work in coordination with the 
selected lockbox service provider regarding remittance form requirements. 
 

61.  Can NYSDCP provide any further details related to items captured and reporting in the 
lockbox? 
 
Over 1,800 employers participate in the NYSDCP Plan and many of those plans send contributions 
via check which are processed using lockbox services. Remittance and checks received by the 
lockbox agent’s processing center are reviewed, imaged, and deposited nightly into the custodian’s 
designated clearing account. Images of lockbox items are accessible via on-line image web portal. 
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62.  Is NYSDCP looking to have the remote deposit of image documents and checks that come to 
the office and have them scanned to the lockbox? 
 
NYSDCP does not currently utilize Remote Capture Deposit services as checks do not come to the 
office. All checks are received at the lockbox agent’s processing center. NYSDCP would like to 
understand your firm’s capabilities regarding these services to evaluate if they would be beneficial to 
the current process. 
 

63.  Are we able to bill Banking Services separate from Custody billing? 
 
Yes. Banking Services fees can be billed separately from Custody fees as long as both invoices 
provide full itemization and detail for services rendered. 
 

64.  How many DDA checking accounts does NYSDCP plan to open related to Treasury and 
Banking Services? 
 
NYSDCP anticipates maintaining 1 DDA checking account related to Treasury and Banking Services. 
 

65.  The Market Value of International Securities excluding the DTC is ~$735mm versus the 
$841mm of market value for International Equity in Direct/Separate Accounts (row 96).  Please 
provide an explanation for the discrepancy. 
 
Some differences may be attributed to accrued income or pending trade activity. In other cases, the 
securities may be depository receipts (i.e. ADR, GDR, etc.) not held in the local country depository 
and are therefore considered US for fee purposes. Please use the country market values provided in 
Exhibit H (Rows161-277) as the basis for your fee estimate. 
 

66.  Will the 7 zombie accounts noted in Exhibit H be onboarded to a new custodian? 
 
This depends on factors such as the purpose of these legacy accounts, whether some must remain 
open for accrued tax reclaims or other income for tracking purposes, or if balances still exist at time of 
conversion. It is likely that not all of these accounts will be on-boarded to a new custodian. 
 

67.  What type of 457 plans are in scope for purposes of this RFP (ex: 457(b) plans and/or 457(f) 
plans)? 
 
The NYSDCP is a governmental 457(b) plan and is the only plan in scope for purposes of this RFP. 
 

68.  Are any other plans or assets held in trust in addition to the 457 plans? 
 
No. Not within the scope for purposes of this RFP. 
 

69.  Please provide a copy of the existing trust agreement and any amendments thereto (a 
redacted copy is satisfactory). 
 
A copy of the existing trust agreement will not be provided at this time. 

 
70.  The RFP states that the “written contract with the awarded financial organization shall be a 

standard State contract” – is this a form of trust agreement or would this be in addition to a 
trust agreement?  Please provide a copy of the standard state contract for review. 
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A form of trust agreement will govern the relationship. NYSDCP would consider utilizing the service 
provider’s form of trust agreement subject to negotiation. 
 

71.  Is NYSDCP open to utilizing a different form of agreement (such as Proposer’s standard form 
of trust agreement, or if applicable, the IRS model rabbi trust form) in lieu of the state trust 
form? 
 
Yes. NYSDCP would consider utilizing the service provider’s form of trust agreement subject to 
negotiation. 
 

72.  In the event that the intended governing trust agreement is to be a standard state trust form, is 
NYSDCP willing to negotiate the terms of such agreement? 
 
The terms of the agreement will be subject to negotiation. 
 

73.  Regarding indemnification, the RFP document states that “No proposer will be entitled to 
include a provision in the contract providing indemnification rights to the proposer,” (pg. 14).  
Given we are acting on behalf of and at the direction of, the client, we generally expect to be 
indemnified for liabilities incurred as a result of acting on those instructions (provided the 
liabilities did not arise as a result of our negligence, fraud or intentional misconduct).  Can 
NYSDCP please clarify the indemnity limitation - is NYSDCP willing to indemnify the Proposer 
for actions taken in accordance with NYSDCP’s instructions or for its role merely serving as 
Trustee of the Trust (subject in each case to a negligence carveout)? 
 
The terms of the agreement will be subject to negotiation.  
 

74.  Is NYSDCP able to extend the due date by one week to May 5th? 
 
No. An extension to the response due date will not be provided. 
 


